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St atenent of the Proceedi ngs

These proceedi ngs concern civil penalty proposals filed
by the petitioner against the respondent pursuant to section
110(a) of the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977,

30 U.S.C. " 820(c), seeking civil penalty assessnents for

nine (9) alleged violations of certain mandatory safety
standards found in Parts 48 and 75, Title 30, Code of Federal
Regul ations. A hearing was conducted in Fort Smth, Arkansas,
and the petitioner appeared, but the respondent did not.



| ssues

The issues presented in these proceedings include the fact
of violation, whether sonme of the violations were "significant
and substantial,"” and the appropriate civil penalty assessnents
to be nmade for the violations.

Appl i cable Statutory and Regul atory Provi sions

1. The Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of
1977, 39 U.S.C. " 301, et seq.

2. Sections 110(a) and 110(i) of the Act.
3. Comm ssion Rules, 29 CF.R " 2700.1, et seq.

Sti pul ati ons

The petitioner's counsel produced the follow ng stipulations
for the record, and he stated that he had not reviewed themwth
t he respondent, but had no reason to believe that the respondent
woul d object to them (Tr. 6-8):

1. The respondent is engaged in mning and
selling mnerals, and its m ning operations affect
commer ce.

2. The respondent is the owner and operator

of the Wlkem#1 Mne, Mne ldentification
Nunmber 03-01736.

3. The respondent is an operator within the
meani ng of the M ne Act.

4. The respondent is subject to the jurisdiction
of the Federal Mne Safety and Health Act of 1977,
30 U.S.C. Section 801, et seq. (Mne Act).

5. The Adm ni strative Law Judge has jurisdiction
over this matter.



6. The subject orders were properly served
by a duly authorized representative of the Secretary
of Labor, the Mne Safety and Health Adm nistration,
upon an agent of the respondent on the dates and
pl aces stated therein. Accordingly, the orders may
be admtted into evidence for the purpose of estab-
lishing their issuance and not for the truthful ness
or relevancy of any statenents asserted therein.

7. The proposed penalties as anmended by
the parties in the course of their settlenent
negotiations will not affect the respondent's
ability to continue in business.

Di scussi on

As previously noted, the petitioner entered an appearance
at the hearing, but the respondent did not. The parties
informed ne of their proposed settlenents, for the first tine,
shortly after ny arrival in Fort Smith the day before the
hearing. The respondent's representative advised ne in the
course of a tel ephone conference that he was unable to appear
at the hearing, and that since he reached a settlenment with the
petitioner, he believed that his appearance was not necessary.
| accepted the respondent’'s excuse for not appearing pursuant
to notice and advised himthat | would not hold himin default
pursuant to Conm ssion Rule 2700.66, 29 CF. R " 2700. 66,
particularly since he was acting pro se and agreed to a settle-
ment with the petitioner in good faith, and did not dispute
the violations except for the proposed penalty assessnents.

The citations, initial assessnents, and the proposed
settlenment dispositions for the violations in these cases are
as follows:

CENT 94- 206

30 CF.R
Order No. Dat e Section Assessment Settl enent
3589714 12/ 13/ 93 75. 370( a) $3, 800 $1, 000
3589716 12/ 13/ 93 48. 6(a) $ 600 $ 600
CENT 94-213

30 CF.R
Order No. Dat e Section Assessment Settl enent




3589703 12/ 07/ 93 75.370(a) (1) $1, 800 $1, 000
3589707 12/ 08/ 93 75.1714(hb) $2, 300 $1, 000
3589712 12/ 08/ 93 75. 306( b) $2, 500 $1, 000
3591472 12/ 13/ 93 75. 503 $2, 400 $1, 000
3589723 1/ 03/ 94 75. 360( a) $4, 500 $1, 400
3589724 1/ 03/ 94 75.220(a) (1) $2, 800 $1, 000
CENT 94- 235
Statutory

Order No. Dat e Section Assessment Settl enent
3589728 1/ 12/ 94 104(d) (2) of $4, 800 Vacat ed

t he Act

The petitioner's counsel presented argunments in support of
t he proposed settlenent. Counsel stated that the respondent
acquired the mne and began developing it on Septenber 30, 1993,
and that the inspection which resulted in the violations was the
first MSHA AAA inspection for the respondent. MSHA | nspector
Lester Col eman, who was present in the courtroom confirmed that
this was the case.

confirmed that in the course of the
settl enment negotiations, the respondent did not dispute the
fact of violations, and took issue only with the anount of the
proposed penalty assessnments which it believe were unreasonabl e
and excessive. Counsel stated that the mne is no longer in
operation and that it has been cl osed down by MSHA by virtue

Petitioner's counsel

of an outstanding section 104(d)(2) order issued in June, 1994.

| nspector Col eman confirnmed that this was the case (Tr. 22-24).
| nspector Col enman stated that when the mne was in

operation, it enployed six mners and an on-site engi neer, and

produced 3,496 tons of coal annually. | conclude and find that
the respondent is a small m ne operator, and that it is no | onger
actively mning the subject mne where these violations occurred
(Tr. 27-28).

The record reflects that all of the violations that are
the subject of these proceedings were termnated after the
respondent corrected and abated the cited conditions.
Petitioner's counsel and |Inspector Colenman confirmed that the
respondent took corrective action after it was served with the
vi ol ati ons.

Wth respect to section 104(a) non-"S&S" Citation
No. 3589728, January 12, 1994 (Docket No. CENT 94-235), the
petitioner's counsel noved to w thdraw the proposed civil
penal ty assessnent and to vacate the citation on the ground
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that it is duplicative of a violation cited in section 104(d)(2)
Order No. 3589724, issued on January 3, 1994, in Docket

No. CENT 94-213. The notion was granted fromthe bench, and

my ruling in this regard is re-affirmed (Tr. 9-10, 20).

Concl usi on

After careful review and consideration of the pleadings,
and the argunents in support of the proposed settlenment of these
cases, | conclude and find that the proposed settlenent disposi-
tions are reasonable and in the public interest. | take note of
the fact that all of the violations were abated, and there is no
evi dence of any accidents or injuries resulting fromthe cited

conditions or practices. | have al so considered the fact that
the respondent is a small mne operator and that the subject m ne
is closed and not presently producing coal. Under all of these

ci rcunst ances, and pursuant to Comm ssion Rule 31, 29 C F.R
" 2700.31, the settlenents agreed to by the parties ARE APPROVED.

ORDER

In view of the foregoing, IT IS ORDERED as foll ows:

1. Section 104(a) non-"S&S" Citation No. 3589728,

i ssued on January 12, 1994, and alleging a failure
by the respondent to conply wwth a previously issued
section 104(d)(2) order IS VACATED, and the
petitioner's civil penalty proposed |'S DI SM SSED

2. The respondent IS ORDERED to pay civil penalty
assessnments in the settlenent anmounts shown above in
satisfaction of the enunerated citations for each of
the cases. The petitioner has confirmed that the
respondent has paid $2,000 in partial paynent of the
total settlenment anmount in these cases. The renaining
paynments are to be nade to MSHA in accordance with the
fol |l ow ng schedul e:

Dat e Due Paynment Due
May 20, 1995 $1, 000
June 20, 1995 $1, 000
July 20, 1995 $1, 000
August 20, 1995 $1, 000
Sept enber 20, 1995 $1, 000
Cct ober 20, 1995 $1, 000



Paynents shall be nade by certified or cashier's
check nmade payable to "The U. S. Departnent of Labor, NMSHA "
and mailed to Mne Safety and Health Adm nistration,
P. O Box 360250M Pittsburgh, PA 15251-6250. Each paynent
instrunment shall include the rel evant docket nunbers and
assessnent control nunbers, CENT 94-206, A.C. No. 03-01736;
CENT 94-213, A .C. No. 03-01736-03507; and CENT 94- 235,
A.C. No. 03-01736-03508. Conpliance with this paynent schedul e
requi res the respondent to have his nonthly paynents deposited
inthe US Mil by the dates |isted above.

These decisions wll not becone final until such tinme as
full paynent of the $6, 000 bal ance due is made by the respondent
to MSHA, and | retain jurisdiction in these proceedings until
paynment of all installnents are remtted and recei ved by MSHA
In the event the respondent fails to conply with the terns of the
settlenment, the petitioner may file a notion seeking appropriate
sanctions or further action against the respondent, including a
reopening of the cases. 1In the event the respondent fails to
tinely remt its nonthly paynents, the remaining balances wl|
becone due and i nmedi ately payable to MSHA. Upon recei pt of al
paynments, these proceedings are dism ssed.

CGeorge A Koutras
Adm ni strative Law Judge
Di stribution:

Robert A. CGol dberg, Esq., Ofice of the Solicitor,

U S. Departnent of Labor, 525 Giffin Street, Suite 501,
Dal l as, TX 75202 (Certified Mail)

Edward E. Snock, President, Gem ni M ning Corporation,
P. O Box 86, Sonerset, PA 15658 (Certified Mil)
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